

#### **OPV Partnerships and Operations**

Work based learning at La Trobe

# **Work Based Learning**

# STUDENT GUIDE



#### Disclaimer

The information contained in this publication is indicative only. While every effort is made to provide full and accurate information at the time of publication, the University does not give any warranties in relation to the accuracy and completeness of the contents. The University reserves the right to make changes without notice at any time in its absolute discretion, including but not limited to varying admission and assessment requirements, and discontinuing or varying courses. To the extent permitted by law, the University does not accept responsibility of liability for any injury, loss, claim or damage arising out of or in any way connected with the use of the information contained in this publication or any error, omission or defect in the information contained in this publication.

La Trobe University is a registered provider under the Commonwealth Register of Institutions and Courses for Overseas Students (CRICOS). La Trobe University CRICOS Provider Code Number 00115M

# **Table of contents**

WHAT IS AN INDUSTRY PLACEMENT?	5
Steps to finding a work placement	6
Identify your skills and career pathways	6
Identify the right organisation	6
The role of the student	8
The role of the University	8
The role of the host organisation	9
The role of the industry placement educator	9
LEGAL AND SECURITY CONSIDERATIONS	10
All parties agree to terms	10
Work Based Learning Agreement	10
Insurance	11
Travel Insurance	11
Intellectual property	11
Confidentiality	12
Security and compliance checks	12
COMPLIANCE – PRE PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS	12
Police Check	12
Working with Children Check (WWCC)	13
Child Safe Module (TSSD)	13
ENSURING QUALITY EXPERIENCE	13
Seeking and receiving feedback	13
Understanding Intending Learning Outcomes	13
Assessment	13
Academic Integrity	14
Equitable access for all students	14
What is a Learning Access Plan?	14
Safety in the workplace	14
Emergencies and critical incidents	14

٧	٧	_	-	_		14	_	١		_	uı	ч	١
rn	h	10	Π	Jr	١i	VE	r	ς	it	V			T

UNIVERSITY CONTACT	16
University support resources	15
Emergency contacts	
Emergency Contacts	_ 15
La Trobe University	y 3

## **INTRODUCTION**

If you are receiving this guide, you are undertaking an industry placement as a core requirement of your course or have made the decision to undertake an industry placement as an elective. Your placement may be sourced by the university or, in some cases, sourced by you. Either way, congratulations! Completing an industry placement and engaging in work-based learning (WBL) is one of the most effective ways to build your capabilities for employment and prepare yourself for your new career directions.

We want to ensure that you are appropriately supported while undertaking your placement and as such, we have designed this manual for you to reference throughout your placement. This manual provides a summary of responsibilities, expectations and key considerations when La Trobe students are approved to undertake a WBL activity within a partnering host organisation.

This manual is intended to provide high level information regarding La Trobe University supporting mechanisms and processes. The manual does not replace discipline, course or subject specific manuals. Please make sure you also access these manuals to receive all the necessary information that supports you to successfully complete your industry placement subject(s).

## WHAT IS AN INDUSTRY PLACEMENT?

### An industry placement is a work-based learning activity that:

- is an experience that integrates theory with practice in the workplace, where a student engages with industry or community organisations
- is an activity that is planned so that students acquire practical work skills
- has purposeful links to the curriculum with assessments specifically designed for the activity
- has both an industry placement educator (supervisor) and an academic supervisor for the student
- is approved by the University prior to being undertaken.

# STEPS TO FINDING A PLACEMENT

This section provides you with tips and advice on how to find a placement.

When searching for your own industry placement, it is important that you spend some time creating a targeted approach through identifying industries, companies, projects, and contacts of interest. This will assist you in being clear about what it is that you are looking for and additionally, will help you to build knowledge of possible careers in your disciplined area.

When contacting industry professionals, remember that you will make a strong first impression if you are well informed and clear about what it is you are hoping to achieve while undertaking a placement.

#### **Prepare your documentation**

Preparation is an essential step prior to approaching a potential host or submitting a placement application.

When searching for a placement, the first and most important task is to ensure you are ready to present yourself to industry. The <u>Student Sourced Checklist</u> provides step by step instructions detailing how to prepare yourself for industry, identify a potential host and how to find a placement opportunity.

All La Trobe students have complimentary access to <u>Career Ready Assist</u>, an interactive online tool designed to help you prepare for placement applications and boost your employability.

This platform not only helps you build your resume and practice interview skills, but it also provides Al-powered feedback on your CV and interview techniques. For tips on putting together a cover letter for a placement application, please visit <u>CareerHub.</u>
Remember, first impressions matter!

Contact the <u>Employability Programs team</u> for further information about workshops, webinars and for general support on any of these resources.

## Identify your skills and career pathways

Are you curious about what type of placement, job or career you can aim for?

La Troe University has produced career summaries for the major discipline areas taught at La Trobe. The summaries are based on the jobs and companies La Trobe graduates have gone on to work in, and the technical and transferable skills you'll develop in your course.

You can refer to these PDF summaries when searching for a placement opportunity and an ideal host, enabling you to focus on some of the skills you are developing while you're studying (to add to your CV and cover letter) and the potential hosts that you could contact about placement opportunities.

#### Find out more

# Identify the right organisation

Searching for the right organisation and a placement opportunity requires advance planning. Reflecting on your values, interests and goals will help you find a placement that aligns with your course and your career goals.

- Approach an organisation that can provide you with a learning opportunity of interest.
- Select an organisation that can allocate you with a dedicated placement supervisor.
- Placement tasks should allow you to meet the Subject Learning Outcomes and meet your goals.

# Consider different types of organisations such as:

- Local Councils
- Small to Medium business
- Multinationals
- Associations
- Startups
- Not for profits
- Community organisations
- State & Federal Government departments.
- Services industries

## La Trobe University's minimum standards and OHS guidelines:

- Students generally cannot undertake a placement in a small family business
- All host organisations must complete a student placement agreement
- All host organisations must have public liability insurance
- All host supervisors must be willing to complete a student evaluation form as part of the WIL unit assessment

# Steps to finding a placement:







Step 3 Step 4 Step 5







#### THE ROLE OF THE STUDENT

#### The role of the student is to conduct themselves in a professional manner including:

- arriving on time
- dressing to an acceptable workplace standard (this may include wearing attire for work health and safety)
- adopting appropriate workplace etiquette and communication
- undertaking the agreed work and academic activities
- asking questions, use initiative, offer support in the workplace, and provide constructive feedback
- adhering to privacy, confidentiality and intellectual property (IP) requirement and student placement deed.
- obtaining all necessary compliance requirements stipulated by the host organisation such as vaccinations, Working with Children Checks, Police Checks, First Aid Certificates etc.
- abiding by relevant workplace policies as notified to them by the host industry placement educator
- abiding by the relevant University policies and codes, including the University's <u>Charter of Student</u> Rights and Responsibilities
- raising issues with appropriate people such as your industry placement educator or an academic in a timely manner.

# THE ROLE OF THE UNIVERSITY

#### What is the University's role?

- approve the placement/work-based learning activities, assuring they are in line with the expected course and subject learning outcomes and provide the student with appropriate opportunities
- ensure all legal and compliance obligations are understood and followed by all parties, including those related to appropriate facilities, occupational health and safety, services available to students, child safety and Working with Children Checks
- provide a point of contact for the industry placement educator and the student
- provide resources or curriculum for students for the conduct of each project/program as necessary
- develop clear learning objectives and assist in determining the project brief or placement description as appropriate
- provide opportunities for individual/group reflections and class discussions as applicable
- support students to resolve issues that may arise within the workplace and/or impact their placement overall
- provide students with relevant COVID updates and information that may impact placement delivery.
- organise work-based learning arrangements, including one-off and student-sourced arrangements, formalising an agreement between the University and the host organisation. Prior to formalisation, the proposed arrangements must undergo a due diligence review to ensure regulatory compliance, quality and safety

## THE ROLE OF THE HOST ORGANISATION

#### The role of the host is to:

- appoint an industry placement educator who is qualified, skilled, or experienced in the agreed work-based learning activities, with the ability to mentor and supervise the student
- determine the level of the organisation's involvement in the recruitment and selection process (this will depend on the subject)
- provide details of whether the position is paid or unpaid, the duration and proposed start and end dates, preferred days per week, and any non-financial benefits, such as accommodation or meals
- advise the University (and students) of relevant compliance requirements. For example, the need to undertake a Working with Children Check or Police Check prior to commencing placement
- assess any specific risks associated with student placements (e.g. any travel requirements, remote working environments or out-of-hours work) in the workplace and advise the University staff contact how these will be managed
- provide appropriate facilities for the placement and the number of students using them
- provide an environment for the student that is actively managing COVID-19 risks
- complete and return any required documents such as agreements, COVIDSafe plans (if applicable) and evidence of industry placement educator qualifications where appropriate
- abide by the Australian Government Fair Work Act. Specific information about student placement and internships can be found **here.**

# THE ROLE OF THE INDUSTRY PLACEMENT EDUCATOR

## The role of the industry placement educator is to:

- clearly communicate the expected tasks and responsibilities of the student, from the host's point of view. Depending on the subject, industry placement educators may also be asked to provide a written placement description to assist in clarifying the role and for recruitment purposes
- work collaboratively with the student to develop some key workplace aims related to the placement description and their academic studies as appropriate
- provide an overview of the organization's goals, aims, and mission to the student(s)
- provide an on-site induction and/or online induction where appropriate, including in occupational health and safety procedures such as emergencies and incident reporting, and ensure these are adhered to for the duration of the placement. Introduce the student to key staff and provide an overview of your organisation's policies and procedures
- ensure any necessary training is provided
- report any issues with the placement or concerns about the student's progress and wellbeing to your key contact at La Trobe University
- meet regularly and provide feedback on the students' performance during the placement and in many instances provide written feedback to the university on the student's performance at the conclusion of the placement
- be aware of the subject learning outcomes and academic activities and align placement activities accordingly.

#### **LEGAL AND SECURITY CONSIDERATIONS**

Depending on the subject and relationship status (new or existing partnership with La Trobe University), the host organisation may need to provide a placement description (or equivalent) to describe the activities that you will engage in during your time at the organisation

All student-sourced placements need to be approved by the university prior to commencement to ensure alignment to subject learning outcomes and suitability of the workplace. Each subject has a specific approval process, please ensure you follow the process and complete all necessary tasks in the application and approval process. This includes ensuring you are enrolled in the correct subject for the correct teaching period. For subject enrolment assistance, please contact ASKLaTrobe.

For assistance with the application and approvals process, please contact your La Trobe University representative.

## **WORK BASED LEARNING AGREEMENT**

The terms of the placement are agreed prior to commencement via a Work Based Learning Agreement. This is a document that is signed by both the University and the host organisation and outlines the key requirements relating to the placement and the key responsibilities of each party.

A valid Agreement must be in place prior to placement commencement. Students will be notified when the placement agreement is finalised, and the placement is approved. Please ensure you have this approval before starting placement. Note, there are deadlines for placement approval, and you must make sure you do not leave any tasks related to enrolment or approval until the last minute. If approval is not obtained prior to the deadline, you will not be able to complete the subject in that teaching period.

### **INSURANCE**

La Trobe University's insurance policies provide some cover for students when on approved placements. However, a valid agreement must be in place prior to placement commencement. More information about insurance for students on placement can be found at the University's insurance pages: <a href="Insurance office">Insurance office</a>, <a href="La Trobe University">La Trobe University</a>

# TRAVEL INSURANCE

The University's Travel Insurance provides cover for staff and students whilst travelling both domestically and internationally for approved University travel.

The policy responds to unforeseen accidents, losses, and additional expenses for approved travel to destinations 50km or more from the student's main campus or residence. The policy includes cover for, but not limited to; emergency medical expenses and evacuation, cancellation/curtailment expenses, and loss of personal effects/travel documents: <a href="Travel">Travel</a>, Insurance office, La Trobe University

# **INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY**

The Intellectual Property (or IP) of a student refers to creations of the mind, such as literary and artistic works, designs, symbols, names and images used by an organisation.

All Intellectual Property created, discovered, brought into existence or otherwise acquired as a result of, for the purposes of, or in connection with the student placement written within the WBL Agreement and all other rights in respect of such Intellectual Property vest exclusively in the Organisation.

The Work Based Learning Agreement allows the Organisation to acknowledge and agrees that ownership of all Intellectual Property discovered, brought into existence or otherwise acquired by a student as a result of, for the purposes of, or in connection with, course work that is a component of the Student's University Course and all other rights in respect of such Intellectual Property vest in the student. Once a WBL agreement is signed the parties agree that the ownership of Background Intellectual Property is not affected by this Agreement and remains the property of the party that owns or controls that Background.

## **CONFIDENTIALITY**

Students should be aware that host organisations may have concerns surrounding privacy and confidentiality in relation to clients' information or the organisation's intellectual property. You may be requested to sign a confidentiality agreement. The OPV team will send students a Student Placement Deed to sign prior to commencing placement.

The Student Placement Deed is a document to acknowledge that students understand they must meet certain requirements as a condition of their Placement, and that for LTU to facilitate the Placement it must provide students with personal information to the Organisation on my behalf.

#### The deed covers:

- Placement document and personal information
- Compliance requirements
- Accepting placement and condition of placement
- Behaviour on placement
- **Intellectual Property**
- Confidential information

## **SECURITY AND COMPLIANCE CHECKS**

There are a range of security and compliance checks that you may be required to undertake before commencing placement. Police Checks and Working with Children Checks are two of the more common requirements of host organisations prior to commencing placements, however, please note there are other potential requirements.

The University WBL team can advise on specific compliance requirements for your subject.

## **COMPLIANCE – PRE PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS**

Whether you have secured a placement or contacting potential industry placement supervisors, remember to ask them whether you will need any of the following:

- Police check
- Working With Children Check
- **Immunisation**
- Health check
- First aid certificate
- Protective clothing or equipment requirements

If you need a Police Check or Working with Children check, please email the relevant placement team.

## **POLICE CHECK**

Police Checks may be required for some placements. Areas such as Health related specialisations will have mandatory Police Check requirements. The Placement Operations Team will be able to advise if this is needed. Should you be required to complete a Police Check, you will be sent a registration link for fit2work (to your LTU student email) or directed to the Victoria Police online application. The University subsidises some of the cost of Police Checks for students requiring them for placement purposes.

If your host organisation informs you that you will need a Police Check, please contact your University WBL team to access assistance.

## **WORKING WITH CHILDREN CHECK (WWCC)**

The University requires students undertaking any work or professional experience placements to have a current and valid volunteer Working with Children assessment prior to commencing their placement.

Application instructions for a WWCC are available here:

https://www.latrobe.edu.au/students/opportunities/wil-placements/placements-and-wil/health/checks

Please note that you are not allowed to commence a WBL activity until all relevant documentation has been completed and submitted to the University.

### **CHILD SAFE STANDARDS TRAINING**

If you are enrolled in a course that includes placement, you are required to complete the University's <u>Child Safe Standards Training</u> on LMS [La Trobe log in required]. This training includes four modules and a quiz. Upon successful completion of the quiz, you'll receive a certificate, and your results will be automatically synchronised to InPlace within one week.

The La Trobe Child Safety Standards are based on the Standards included in the Child Safe and Wellbeing Act 2005 and Victorian Child Safe Standards, and aim to strengthen laws to protect children from sexual abuse and exposure to sexual offenders. More information in our statement on Child Safety.

#### **UNDERSTANDING INTENDING LEARNING OUTCOMES**

To support student learning, industry placement educators are encouraged to provide constructive feedback to students on their skill development throughout their placement. Some placements may require completion of a student performance evaluation form as a subject requirement (hurdle) or as part of the subject assessment.

You are highly encouraged to regularly check in with your Subject Coordinator or industry placement educator to obtain feedback throughout the placement so that any required changes to the activities you are completing, or your approaches to tasks, can be made. Some subjects also have a specific mid-way feedback process which is completed by the student and industry placement educator.

Students are also provided with an opportunity to provide formal feedback on the placement experience via the La Trobe end of subject evaluation survey, SFS (Student Feedback on Subject).

## **SEEKING AND RECEIVING FEEDBACK**

As work-based learning activities are generally undertaken as part of the curriculum, you should familiarise yourself with the Subject Intended Learning Outcomes (SILOs) associated with the activity. SILOs are available in the Subject Learning Guide that can be accessed on LMS, through the <u>University Handbook</u> or the <u>online subject database</u> prior to commencing the placement.

You are encouraged to advise your Subject Coordinator if you feel the SILO's of the subject are not met via the placement experience. For some placements, you are required to provide your industry placement educator with a copy of the subject learning guide or the learning outcomes and any assessment requirements. This assists the industry placement educator to appreciate what you are working towards and what you will be assessed upon during and at the conclusion of the placement

#### **ASSESSMENT**

Placement that is undertaken as and enrolled subject as part of your course will have associated assessment tasks. Depending on the subject, some assessments will involve input from the industry placement educator, particularly in the form of evaluation of placement performance. This assessment by the industry placement educator will contribute towards final grade.

You should inform your industry placement educator at the beginning of the placement if they are required to complete any assessment or evaluation during the placement time period. Provide them with details of the process, including the assessment instructions and form, as soon as practical. Information regarding assessment requirements can be found within the Student Learning Guide on LMS through the <u>University Handbook</u> or the <u>online subject database</u>.

# **ACADEMIC INTEGRITY**

The University takes academic integrity seriously and has a framework for promoting academic integrity and managing cases of academic misconduct. This also applies to work-based learning experiences. Host organisations are encouraged to report any suspected case of academic misconduct during a student's industry placement so that the case can be managed according to university policy. For more information, please refer to Academic Integrity on the La Trobe University webpage.

# **EQUITABLE ACCESS FOR ALL STUDENTS**

It is a priority for La Trobe that all students have access to quality placement experiences. You are encouraged to speak with your Subject Coordinator or the University WBL teams regarding any conditions or situation that could impact your ability to undertake placement, so that reasonable adjustments can be made. La Trobe's AccessAbility Hub is also available to offer support to students to enable a successful work based learning experience.

# WHAT IS A LEARNING ACCESS PLAN?

A Learning Access Plan (LAP) is a set of recommendations on adjustments for a student with a disability or medical condition to ensure the learning support needs of each student are met. They are based on the impact of the disability and the needs and preferences of the student. Responsibility to disclose the LAP and its details lie entirely with the student and there is no obligation on the student's part to disclose the LAP.

If you disclose and share a LAP, staff involved in securing a placement for a student will need to ensure that the recommendations in the LAP are consistent with the requirements of that placement.

Having an LAP does not prohibit your ability to access industry placement opportunities at La Trobe.

# SAFETY IN THE WORKPLACE

You are entitled to a safe working environment and should feel comfortable reporting any concerns you have for your safety directly to your industry placement educator and/or the Subject Coordinator. Concerns for your safety may include physical safety as well as emotional safety, such as displays of inappropriate behaviours including discrimination, victimisation, assault, harassment, or sexual harassment. Where the host organisation or La Trobe University becomes aware of an unsafe situation, the student will be supported, and the matter investigated. This may include temporarily or permanently ceasing the placement depending on the set of circumstances.

Other Occupational Health and Safety measures such as workplace commencement inductions, regular safety inspections and allowing adequate time away from the host organisation throughout the placement will also be implemented by the host organisation.

# **EMERGENCIES AND CRITICAL INCIDENTS**

- Use the incident notification procedures for the organisation that they are working within (which may direct a call straight
- In an emergency requiring immediate assistance (particularly if away from the placement site) direct call to 000, followed by a call to La Trobe University security on 03 9479 2222 (when it is safe to do so). Note that the La Trobe University security number operates 24 hours a day.
- For non-emergency incidents where assistance is required a call through to LTU Security on 03 9479 2012 (available all hours), followed by notifying the industry placement supervisor and La Trobe University Subject Coordinator academic.
- For counselling support contact the Student Counselling Service at La Trobe

Or P: (03) 9479 2956, Monday to Friday, 9am to 5pm. For out of hours counselling support, La Trobe University Out of Hours Crisis Line, call :1300 146 307 or Text: 0488 884 100 (5.00 pm–9.00 am weekdays, 24 hours weekends and public holidays).

- For all incidents, the student should complete an incident report using the organisation's reporting process <a href="mailto:and-complete">and</a> complete an online incident report: <a href="http://www.latrobe.edu.au/emergency/incident-reporting">http://www.latrobe.edu.au/emergency/incident-reporting</a>
- When practical, please email your Subject Coordinator and brief them on what has happened in case there is need for any further support.

# **EMERGENCY CONTACTS**

- For fire, police or ambulance call 000
- Contact your supervisor and use the incident notification procedures for the organisation you are working within
- For non-emergency incidents where assistance is required call LTU Security 03 9479 2012 (24x7 number), followed by notifying the workplace supervisor and Instance/Subject Coordinator.
- For counselling support contact <u>La Trobe University Counselling Service</u>
- For all incidents, the student should complete an incident report using the agency's reporting process and complete an online incident report for LTU: <a href="http://www.latrobe.edu.au/emergency/incident-reporting">http://www.latrobe.edu.au/emergency/incident-reporting</a>
- It is recommended that students have their own Ambulance and Private Health Insurance. More information: <a href="http://www.latrobe.edu.au/insurance/students/personal">http://www.latrobe.edu.au/insurance/students/personal</a>.
- More information regarding all insurance policies for students: <a href="http://www.latrobe.edu.au/insurance/students">http://www.latrobe.edu.au/insurance/students</a>.

# **UNIVERSITY SUPPORT RESOURCES**

La Trobe University provides several free services for students to access. Please refer to any of the following services at any point during your placement:

- Careers & Employability
- Industry Placements
- Child Safety Officer
- Health, wellbeing, and student support services
- Library
- Student Union
- Security Office
- Insurance office, La Trobe University

# **UNIVERSITY CONTACT**

- For answers to common placement or work-based learning questions please visit the Work Integrated Learning and **Placements**
- If you can't find the answer you are looking for, please submit your question through the Work Based Learning Placements Student Enquiry form and your Placement Officer will help you out. This will ensure that your question is answered quickly and by the right person.
- If you are currently receiving support from your Placement Officer, your enquiry will continue to be supported, and you do not need to take any action.
- For general questions not related to WBL or placements, or for questions regarding enrolment into placement subjects, please visit Ask La Trobe.